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Our Vision

To drive for unity and excellence
of the construction industry of Hong Kong
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Our Mission

To strengthen the sustainability of the construction industry
in Hong Kong by providing a communications platform,
striving for continuous improvement,
increasing awareness of health and safety,
as well as improving skills development
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Chairman’'s Message | F[EHUE

From a global perspective we experienced a year of uncertainty
in 2009, from an unprecedented meltdown in our financial
establishments to a gradual improvement in our economic
outlook, Hong Kong nevertheless was spared from such drastic
experiences simply because of its solid governance regime
and its robust attitude towards risk management. Building on
these strengths the Government began to reinvest in the
various sectors with the foresight of transforming Hong Kong
into a world-class city. By doing so, commitment towards
investing in infrastructure developments and associated
works are crucial. | am delighted to say the Government has
indeed committed to invest in these areas. It is also the
opportunity for the construction industry stakeholders
to work together to uplift the standards of professionals and
workers, allow creative and innovative talent to be developed
as well as encourage those who have not contemplated in
joining the industry to do so.

Preparing the Ground for Stronger
Links

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was established on
1 February 2007. The amalgamation of the CIC and the
Construction Industry Training Authority was completed
on 1 January 2008. Initially the CIC did focus its efforts
on ensuring a smooth transition, in terms of organisational
structure, operational efficiency and corporate governance.
These are the key ingredients in establishing one’s foundation
with a view to developing initiatives going forward. In saying
this we have not been complacent, on the contrary, we strive
for a safe, environmentally responsible, innovative, efficient
and client-oriented construction industry through the six
committees under the CIC. | shall highlight some of them
within this message.

The CIC advocates site safety through engaging stakeholders
in the development and issuance of guidelines to convey good
practices to be adopted within the industry. We also propose
safety measures to the relevant Government departments for
consideration and adoption in their practice notes or codes of
practice.

In collaboration with building professionals and environmental
experts, the Hong Kong Green Building Council (HKGBC) was
established in November 2009 to consolidate the efforts of the
industry and the public towards a greener built environment
for the future.
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Chairman’s Message | F[EHUE

It is easy to understand that a project can be completed more
effectively and efficiently in a satisfactory manner with the
key participants working together but not so readily to put
into practice. Hence, guidelines to provide comprehensive
and practical advice in the adoption of partnering approach in
construction contracts will be issued shortly.

There is always an impression that outstanding payment
problems persist in the construction industry. A comprehensive
survey was therefore commissioned to understand the actual
situation and help devise possible solutions to address the
problems identified.

Knowing the demand and supply of workforces is critical for
setting proper strategies to plan for the future manpower
resources of the industry. The CIC has been working on a
model to forecast the demand and supply of construction
workers, technicians and supervisors. On the other hand,
the Construction Industry Training Board continued playing
an active role in training and trade tests with a view to providing
sufficient and quality workforces to the industry.

As to our stakeholders and the public at large, | would like to
invite you to read our newly launched newsletters.

Stepping up Our Efforts

The construction industry has come a long way and is gradually
seen as a responsible player in the community. With the
vision of driving for unity and excellence of the construction
industry, it is our duty to ensure that we work hand in hand
with all stakeholders to ensure that the industry meets the
needs of today and tomorrow. As Chairman of the CIC, | would
like to emphasise that CIC is here to help the industry to
develop its goals and aspirations further and on this basis CIC
will be embarking on a series of exercises to engage industry
to enhance its capabilities further. Finally | would like to take
this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to the past
chairman, Mr Keith KERR, for his able leadership in putting
the CIC on the right track as well as members of the past term
for their indispensable contributions. Their invaluable inputs
did establish a solid foundation for the CIC to further build on
its strengths. | am confident that the CIC in the coming years
will proactively reach out to the industry and will continue to
develop partnership with stakeholders to address the
challenges that lie ahead.

LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP
CIC Chairman since 1 February 2010
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Executive Director’s Report | #i17

The Construction Industry Council plays an important,
enabling role for the construction sector by carrying out
activities that will encourage business success while at the
same time developing strategies for its sustainability. | am
indeed fortunate to be associated with an organisation that
is spearheading many initiatives under the careful guidance
of the Chairman and Council Members. To ensure that these
initiatives are carried out smoothly and in a transparent way,
corporate governance is without doubt a key ingredient in the
equation. On this basis the Council put in place an internal
audit function to assist the various entities within the CIC to
develop appropriate processes and policies which reflect
honesty, trust and integrity, openness, performance orientation,
responsibility and accountability, mutual respect, and
commitment to the organisation. Another crucial ingredient
which the Council embarked upon was to review the current
organisational structure of the CIC to asecratin whether the
existing frameworks and personnel were of the right type
and mix and whether there was a need to adjust the structure
to address matters going forward. As a consequence of the
review, the top-level of the organisational structure from the
level of manager and above were adjusted and subsequently
the Council directed the Secretariat to continue with the review
to other levels within the organisational structure, ensuring
that appropriate functional areas meet the future needs of the
organisation. The Secretariat hopes to complete the review in
the coming year.

Another core review which the Council took upon itself to do
was to ascertain whether the organisation’s staff benefits are
competitive and in line with the industry. The Council through
the assistance of an external human resources consultant is
reviewing our human resources policies and practices. With
this in mind, the Council has assured staff that they will be
consulted so that they are fully aware of any changes (if any)
to their employment terms and conditions.

The Council understands that one way of achieving increase
productivity and efficiency is in the form of automation. The
Council through its foresight is holistically reviewing its
Information Technology policy and strategy to align them to
meet the needs of the organisation now and in the future.
It is anticipated the review will be completed in 2010.

These reviews and initiatives in essence affect CIC, but if we
neglect to ensure that our house is in order, it will be difficult
for us to embark upon the role of understanding the needs
of the industry and ultimately our role as a coordinating body
will be in jeopardy.
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With the necessary internal frameworks gradually being
instigated, the Secretariat has in parallel been drafting its
strategic plan to ensure that CIC’s role and functions fulfill
what have been stipulated in the Ordinance. Ultimately the
strategic plan will be brought to the attention of the Council
for Members to review and approve.

In saying this, the Secretariat feels that there are certain
areas within the strategic plan, which need attention and
these include the areas of safety, training, procurement,
subcontracting, sustainability, and technology of which | shall
briefly mention.

Safety is of paramount importance and efforts to address
some of the deficiencies within the current environment will
need to be reviewed, such as educating and reinforcing
personnel to adhere to safety precautions by wearing
the appropriate safety equipment when on site, basically
changing the mind set of those who work within the
construction sector. devising appropriate pay for safety
strategies to tackle the issues from design and construction
to subsequent operation and maintenance of various plant
and equipment. A comprehensive review of health and safety
matters for the industry will need to be developed and issues
to be prioritised and implemented accordingly.

Skills and Training are crucial if we want to enhance the
image of the industry, attract those high calibre personnel
who wish to join as well as the need to address the issue
of the aging problem of the current construction personnel.
Defining the scope and type of personnel required to sustain
the industry in the long term will also need to be addressed.
Collaborating with stakeholders to provide the best
training needs required of the industry together with the
vision of developing a rewarding career path for those who
join the industry are fundamental if we want to tackle the issue
of what some define as Job of First Choice”. The commitment
of providing a safe, clean and tidy environment whereby
personnel feel that they are valued will ultimately lead to a
more productive and engaged workforce that others will envy
and respect. Maintaining professionalism and quality of
service are crucial in this context.

Procurement, the current system tends to focus on price
rather than best value. Develop a series of policy documents
on good practices in procurement and promote such to the
industry with the focus of re-assessing risk and liability in the
context of providing value for money services. A successful
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procurement policy requires ethical sourcing, enables best
value to be achieved and encourages the early involvement
of the supply chain.

Subcontracting, to ensure effective and equitable cash flow
for all those involved in the industry, no unfair withholding of
retention monies should be advocated. Mechanisms should
be developed to encourage defect free construction. Different
layers of subcontracting will need to be addressed and a
policy will need to be developed to avoid such abuses from
occurring in the first place. Develop a series of policy
documents on good practices in subcontracting and promote
such to the industry for adoption.

Sustainability, a sustainable approach will bring full and
lasting environmental, social and economic benefits through
regeneration and legacy. An overarching sustainable
development strategy will need to be developed with
relevant stakeholders, in particular in the areas of
green building technology, carbon rating systems and
standardisation of material specifications.

Technology, the use of information technology based collaborative
tools and communication technologies to address the issues of
buildability, maintainability and usability while driving health
and safety throughout thus protecting and preserving the
local natural environment should be pursued.

Although some of the suggestions stated above are currently
being pursued, others are still at the stage of the drawing
board and without doubt will need the guidance and wisdom
of the Chairman and Council Members to determine whether
they are appropriate and where necessary refine them to
suit the needs of the industry. | am grateful to our Chairman
and Council Members who have given me the support
and encouragement to pursue some of these initiatives and
I am confident with time we will add value to the industry as
a whole. | must not forget my colleagues who too have been
supportive of moving the organisation to new heights and |
am sure they will continue to contribute to the organisation’s
success in the years to come.

TO Wing, Christopher
Executive Director
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About Construction Industry Council

The Construction Industry Council (CIC) was formed on
1 February 2007 under the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance Cap. 587. CIC consists of a chairman and
24 members representing various sectors of the industry
including employers, professionals, academics, contractors,
workers, independent persons and Government officials.

The main functions of CIC are to forge consensus on long-term
strategic issues, convey the industry’s needs and aspirations
to Government, as well as provide a communication channel
for Government to solicit advice on all construction-related
matters.

To learn more about the CIC, please visit :
www.hkcic.org

CIC Functions | &#2EAE

Under Section 5 of the Construction
Industry Council (CIC) Ordinance, CIC
has the following functions :

1. to advise and make recommendations to the Government
on strategic matters, major policies and legislative
proposals, that may affect or are connected with the
construction industry, and on matters of concern to the
construction industry;

2. to reflect to the Government the construction industry’s
needs and aspirations;
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to elevate the quality and competitiveness of the
construction industry by promoting the ongoing
development and improvement of the industry;

to uphold professionalism and integrity within the
construction industry by promoting self-regulation,
formulating codes of conduct and enforcing such codes;

to improve the performance of persons connected with
the construction industry through establishing or
administering registration schemes or rating schemes;

to advance the skills of personnel in the construction industry
through planning, promotion, supervision, provision
or coordination of training courses or programmes;

to encourage research activities and the use of innovative
techniques and to establish or promote the establishment
of standards for the construction industry;

to promote good practices in the construction industry
in relation to dispute resolution, environmental protection,
multi-layer subcontracting, occupational safety and
health, procurement methods, project management and
supervision, sustainable construction and other areas
conducive to improving construction quality;

to enhance the cohesiveness of the construction industry
by promoting harmonious labour relations and the
observance of statutory requirements relating to
employment, and by facilitating communication among
various sectors of the industry;

to serve as a resource centre for the sharing of knowledge
and experience within the construction industry;

to assess improvements made by the construction industry
through the compilation of performance indicators;

to make recommendations with respect to the rate of the
levy imposed under this Ordinance; and

to perform any other functions relevant to the construction
industry, including those functions conferred or imposed
on it by or under this Ordinance or any other enactment.
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Under Section 6 of the CIC Ordinance,
the supplementary functions of CIC are :

1.
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to provide training courses for the construction
industry;

to establish and maintain industrial training centres for
the construction industry;

to assist, including by the provision of financial
assistance, in the placement of persons who
have completed training courses provided for
the construction industry;

to assess the standards of skills achieved by any
person in any kind of work involving or in connection
with the construction industry, to conduct examinations
and tests, to issue or award certificates of attendance
or competence, and to establish the standards to be
achieved in respect of any such work;

where it is appointed under the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance (Cap 583) as the Registrar of
Construction Workers under that Ordinance, to perform
the functions conferred or imposed on the Registrar by
or under that Ordinance or any other enactment.
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We believe good corporate governance provides incentives for
Members and management to pursue objectives that are in
the interests of CIC and its stakeholders and facilitates effective
monitoring. Our corporate governance framework has been
referenced to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices and
Corporate Governance Report issued by the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, Corporate Governance for Public Bodies — A
Basic Framework published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and Good Governance and Internal Control
in Public Organisations issued by the Independent Commission
Against Corruption. The five cornerstones of our corporate
governance are:

1. Standard of behaviour helps to strengthen an open, accountable
and high integrity culture within CIC. We are committed to build
an open and accountable environment that ensures trust and
confidence.

2. Organisational structure and processes defines the function of
different operational arms and reporting lines with clearly spelt
out individuals' roles and responsibilities.

3. Risk management and control includes risk management,
internal and external auditing as well as budgeting and financial
management to direct the appropriate behaviour.

4. Reporting delineates the external and internal reporting
requirements to ensure a timely disclosure of information for
management decision and compliance with regulatory
requirements.

5. Corporate social responsibilities are embedded as we are
committed to contribute to build a caring society.
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RENEXRELGRBSREBRZABHN (&
EERERTE) M (LXEREE) BBS
TR AEBRARN (RERBERERNERE
R) REBABBRRN (RERBREERARA
BEE) MEEMREERS :

1. TRABREEYNRZSANLRE  HERS
EBREX - REAHBRSHEERES
BPFNHERARAMARXMSEOMRE

2. HABRBREBRERETERBEEFIAE
BERGBREAR  XWERRIABNETINER
ABRBE -

3. REaEERZEHeERREE - ABKRIIE
it URFAERPBER  #FUSIERE
H1TH -

4 ERBANBRABHERER o RRER
REHE  UHEREELRE  BHER
EER o

5. GhEUHEEFRRBSHEYBIELS AL
HE5 1 o




Construction
Industry Council
BEXIE

The Council and Ilts Committees

Committee on
Administration and Finance
TRRMBEEES

Committee on
Construction Site Safety
TihZxEESE

Committee on Procurement
REZES

Committee on
Environment and Technology
RERRNEES

Committee on Subcontracti
ITREPHAEESE

Secretariat Support for the
Formation of the Hong Kong
Green Building Council

RHWEEZERS
Objections Committee
RERHEEZES

Construction Industry Training

Committee on Manpower

Training and Development
ANBIREREER

Task Forcg on Permanent Safety Features
KAREREBEZEHNA

Task Force on Safety of Tower Cranes
EXEERL2EET/)A

Task Force on Site Vehicles and Mobile Plant
AREwMARE M ER /A

Task Force on Working in Hot Weather

®ESRIFEEENA

Task Group on Design,
Installation and Maintenance
of Cast-in Anchor Devices
ME  BEREEBFELHEE
T e/

Task Force on Behavioural Aspects of Site Safety
Tz TRER/NA

Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance,
Alterations and Additions (RMAA) Sites
#iE - RE RERMEIMZTELZE2EH/NAE

Task Force on Construction (Design & Management)

BiE (WREARERE) ZHE/NA

Task Force on Site Safety Training
TinzxIRER/NA

Task Force on the Application
of Mediation on Construction Injuries Dispute
ERRABRAANEETRENITISE

FERETIFNIMEZ2ERT/)NE

Task Force on Partnering
XS FEERNAE

Task Force on Contract Price Fluctuation System for

Private Sector Construction Contracts
ThERIBRESHNERAEZFNEESE/NAE

Task Force on the Selection of Consultants
and Contractors
HEBBASIREAETER/NAE

Task Force on Construction Standard for Buildings
BFEERESR/ A

Task Force on Construction Standard
for Infrastructure
ERR R EREEE/NE

Task Force on Research Activities
MRBHEESFNA

Task Force on Adhesion Technologies
for External Wall Tiles
IMEEEM S RTER/NAE

Voluntary Subcontractor Registration Scheme
(VSRS) 3F i@ il #4 7> & i &E i} il

Task Force on Stage 2 VSRS
FREMESBH ERER

Task Force on the Survey of Problems of Outstanding
Payments in Construction Supply Chain
EEREERERRBEBERSEE/)A

Sub-Committee on Employers Subsidy Scheme
ENEEIREFFINEESE

Board of Studies on Construction Safety Courses
Z2IRREHEEZER

Steering Group on Manpower Research
ANHEEZENA

NBE/NAE

Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft

Task Group on Site Safety of
Working in Lift Shaft
AREETIENTiEE

Trehd

Task Group on the Selection of

Consultants
ERBAS LIENAE

Task Group on the Selection of
Contractors
HEAEE LE/NAE

Task Group on
Architectural Works
BETREIE/NA

Task G
#HETLET

Task Group on
Building Services Works
BEFrREIRIENAE

perxse_ssheses 15



16 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Committee Reports |

Committee on Administration and Finance

TERMBEES

Mr Keith KERR
BEE 4%
CIC Members #E 8

Ir James CHIU
HHIER T2

Chairman =&

Members # &

Ir KWAN Chi-ping, Edgar
AT Ti2R

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
=K TIZRD

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)

BRBEINER (IH)

Terms of Reference :

1. To advise CIC on staff matters, including recruitment,
salary and other conditions of service.

2. To advise CIC on general administration matters,
including accommodation and facilities.

3. To co-ordinate and prepare annual estimates of income
and expenditure and programme of activities for
approval of CIC.

4. To recommend appropriate investments of surplus funds.

5. To advise CIC on other financial matters.

Committee Report :

For the betterment of the CIC’s long term development, a
strategic manpower and organisational review was conducted.
Besides, a consultant was engaged in 2009 to assist in the
modernisation of the Human Resources systems and practices
which were carried over from the former Construction
Industry Training Authority (CITA). In particular, an internal
audit function was established with a 3-year plan formulated
to uphold its corporate governance. In addition, the CIC
commenced to look for a suitable office accommodation for
its Headquarters. Active steps were taken to aggregate its
necessary functions under the same roof to enhance
effective communication and operational efficiency.

The Committee has undergone a number of projects relating
to communications with the industry stakeholders which CIC
believes it is of the utmost importance. The CIC logo
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was designed and in place in 2009, corporate website was
revamped and launched on 1 January 2010, and the CIC
Corporate Identity Manual was produced in order to enhance its
recognition. Furthermore, a 3-year CIC Communications Plan
was established with aims to raise awareness and improve
quality of the construction industry in the areas of construction
site safety, skills development, procurement, sub-contracting,
sustainability and technology through various communication
tactics. Thanks to the editorial board, the CIC has published
its inaugural issue of the CIC newsletter in August 2009 which
provides an additional communication platform.

In the year 2009, CIC had consolidated views and comments
from the industry stakeholders and made submissions to
some consultative exercises including the Draft Arbitration
Bills and the Consultation Document on Review of the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance.

In the financial aspect, the total income of CIC for the year 2009 was
$312.03 million (2008: $297.84 million) representing an increase of
4.8%. The total expenditure for the year 2009 was $238.29 million
(2008: $223.17 million). The operating results for the year showed
a surplus of $73.74 million (2008: $74.67 million).

In 2009, there was $14.60 million other comprehensive income.
This $14.60 million represented gain arising from fair value of
available-for-sale securities investments held at the balance
sheet date (2008: loss of $19.66 million) and was recognised
in 2009 in accordance with the new requirement of the Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards. Adding on 2009 surplus of
$73.74 million (2008:74.67 million), total comprehensive income
for 2009 amounted to $88.34 million (2008: $55.01 million).

Construction levy amounted to $266.58 million in 2009 (2008:
$251.10 million), which accounted for about 85.4% of the total
income of the year, was the main source of income of the Council.
The increase of levy income by 6.2% from 2008 was mainly due
to more income received from building and civil engineering
works undertaken in the year 2009. Levies assessed on the
value of the construction works in the private sector, the public
sector and others (which included port and airport development,
Mass Transit Railway, East Rail and West Rail) were $162.93
million, $95.15 million and $8.31 million respectively, representing
61.1%, 35.7% and 3.1% of the total levy income for 2009. In
addition, penalty received on overdue levy was $0.19 million
(0.1% of the total levy income) for 2009.

The investment and interest income for 2009 was $5.61
million as compared to $12.61 million for 2008. The decrease
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in income for 2009 was mainly attributable to lower interest
earnings from placing time deposits in banks, maturity of some
bonds of higher average interest rates and decline in dividend
received from shares.

Course fees and related income, another major type of income
for the Council amounted to $21.49 million in 2009 (2008: $19.89
million). The trade testing income for 2009 was $5.26 million
(2008: $4.31 million).

Total expenditure in 2009 was $238.29 million as compared to
$223.17 million in 2008, representing an increase of 6.8%. The
major items included:-

Staff costs amounted to $161.33 million in 2009 as compared
to $151.71 million in 2008. The increase of 6.3% was mainly due
to more staff being employed to provide Council services for
enlarged duties and functions of CIC and full year effect of the
new posts filled from mid 2008 onwards.

Training expenses amounted to $33.89 million in 2009 (2008: $29.95
million) representing an increase of 13.2%. The increase is mainly
due to the increase in trainee allowances and the discontinuance of
the Employees Retraining Board subsidies from 2009 onwards.

Workshop expenses increased by 9.4% and amounted to $12.52
million in 2009 (2008: $11.44 million). The increase is mainly
due to the rise in the repair costs of workshop plant used in CIC
Training Academy (CICTA) training centres and training grounds
and commencement of new Tin Shui Wai training ground in 2009.

General and administrative expenses amounted to $18.42
million in 2009 (2008: $14.54 million). The increase by 26.7%
in 2009 was mainly due to the research and studies expenses
and funding support for the establishment and preparation of
operating activities of the Hong Kong Green Building Council
during the year.

At the end of 2009, the Council held a total of $527.66 million as
accumulated fund and reserves as compared to $439.32 million
in 2008. The Council continued to place most of the funds in
time deposits and bonds with licensed banks in Hong Kong,
and invested a limited sum in listed shares.

In accordance with the CIC Ordinance, the Council submitted its
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008 to the
Secretary for Development in June 2009, together with the
audited financial statements for the same period and the
auditor’s report thereof. These were subsequently tabled at
the Legislative Council.
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Committee on Construction Site Safety Tt Z 2 ZE =

Mr KWOK Ping-kwong, Thomas (up to October 2009)
BRARST SE4E (200910 A k)

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas (since October 2009)

A2 5 Ti2R0 (2009510 A )

Members & CIC Members a2 &

Mr CHOI Chun-wa

BHRE 4

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas (up to October 2009)
A2 T2E (20095108 Lb)

Mr HUI Hon-chung, Stanley

FER kA

Prof KO Jan-ming

S8R #x

Mr KWOK Ping-kwong, Thomas (since October 2009)
AT & (20095108 #E)

Mr WAN Koon-sun

B A

Director of Buildings

BFEER

Co-opted Members #®#Z8

Mr James BLAKE - Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation

BE% KL - NEERERA R

Mr CHAN Dick-sang, Philip - Hong Kong Institute of Architects

PREE T4+ -—BBEEMES

Mr CHAN Yiu-tung, Anthony - Hong Kong Construction Association

BORR 4 -BEBEEDHE

Ms FUNG Yin-suen, Ada - Housing Department

BHE 2+ -EEE

Mr Dominic LAM - Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

MERE K& - BBRBEHS

Mr LAU Chi-keung - Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong
2ER AE-BBMERRES

Mr NG Kwok-kwan - Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’ General Union
RER EE-EBREXRTS

Mr PANG Long - Construction Site Workers General Union

T RE-BEWEHTAS

Mr SIU King-nam, William - Hong Kong Bar-Bending Contractors Association
mam AL -BEEENERS

Mr TANG Wah-shing - Occupational Safety and Health Council

BER tE-BELERER

Mr TSANG Chiu-kwan - Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors

TLRE AL -BENEIEEHS

Mr WONG Doon-yee, Charles - Construction Industry Council Training Academy
BERE AL -BEXEEIIRER

Prof WONG Kwan-wabh, Francis - Hong Kong Polytechnic University
EEEHR-BFREIARE

Mr YU Koon-ching - Hong Kong Safety Supervisors Association

REB & -—EBRLBEEHS

Chairman =&
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Government'’s Representatives BUF X%

Mr LAM Ka-tai, Ros - Office of the Commissioner of Insurance

MZRR BE — REBEEIEER

Mr LEUNG Chi-kai — Buildings Department (since July 2009)
REE KE—EFE (2009F7H8)
Mr LEUNG Man-ho, Jonathan - Development Bureau

RYE KE-BRRE

Mr LEUNG Siu-man - Buildings Department (up to July 2009)
KON FE-EFE (2009F7AH1L)
Mr TSO Sing-hin - Labour Department

EREEE-STE

Mr TSUI Wai - Drainage Services Department

{8 %4 - EHE

Terms of Reference :

1. To review and monitor site safety performance of the
construction industry.

2. To identify and recommend measures for improving
safety performance to CIC.

3. To promote adoption of the improvement measures by
the industry.

Committee Report :

In 2009, the Committee on Construction Site Safety continued
to strive for the improvement of site safety in the local
construction industry. Four new Task Forces were established
in the year with members representing different stakeholders
to identify ways to strengthen construction site safety in the
following aspects. The newly formed Task Forces are:-

(1) Task Force on Site Safety of Working in Lift Shaft. The Task
Force examined the safety hazards in and identified
measures to enhance safety of working in lift shaft;

(2) Task Force on Site Safety Training. The Task Force identified
the training needs on site safety for contractors” and
consultants’ site managerial and supervisory personnel;

(3) Task Force on Work Safety of Repair, Maintenance,
Alterations and Additions Sites. The Task Force proposed
strategies and initiatives to improve work safety in repair,
maintenance, alterations and additions works; and
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(4) Task Force on the Application of Mediation on Construction
Injuries Disputes. The Task Force recommended the
adoption of mediation in injury claims dispute, which
facilitated the settlement of claims in a less costly way as
compared to litigation.

Apart from setting up the new Task Forces, the Committee also
supervised the works of its existing Task Forces. For example,
the Task Force on Permanent Safety Features started drafting
the technical guidelines for cast-in anchors to enhance safety
of future repair and maintenance works at the external wall
of new buildings. The Task Force on Safety of Tower Cranes
completed the review and revision of the Guidelines on Safety
of Tower Cranes. The revised version will be released in 2010
for reference by the industry. The Task Force on Working in
Hot Weather, the Task Force on Construction (Design and
Management) and the Task Force on Behavioural Aspects of
Site Safety will continue to intensify consideration of safety
risks in different aspects of construction works and may
develop guidelines of recommended good practices to improve
site safety.

Committee on Procurement
RBEES

Mr Russell BLACK
Mk

CIC Members =28

Chairman =&
Members K&

Ir BONG Shu-ying, Francis
EEMZE TH2RM

Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
BRELE Bt

Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
EEBE 4+

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong
RER K4

Ir James CHIU

R TR

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
A% Ti2Am

Mr LAM Wo-hei
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Mr LEE Shing-see
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Mr WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad

BRW KL

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy

Bk TR

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
BERRkEREREENER (BRE)

Co-opted Members #&#HZ S

Mr James BLAKE - Kowloon-Canton Railway Corporation

BR% KL - NEHEKR AR

Mr CHAN Nap-ming - Housing Department

BRYE RE-FEE

Mr CHEUNG Lung-hing - Construction Site Workers General Union
RIEE SE4 -EEMBBTES

Ms Margaret COATES - CLP Power Hong Kong Limited

Margaret COATES Z+ —HEFEE HGRA 7

Mr lan COCKING - Minter Ellison Lawyers

SRERA= o4 — SRBER B AT

Mr Steve GRIFFIN - MTR Corporation Limited

LER KL -FBEREARLT

Mr Colin JESSE - Evans and Peck (Hong Kong) Company Limited
gt BE-—FLL - B (FB) ERAF

Prof Mohan M.KUMARASWAMY - The University of Hong Kong
BXS B -—BBKRE

Mr LAU Chun-kay - Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors

ZIRE a4 —BEBRETERHS

Mr Kevin POOLE - Airport Authority Hong Kong

BEL TE-—BBRISERR

Mr Hugh WU

AR STk

Government’s Representatives BUfF{L &

Mr LAM Tin-sing, Enoch - Development Bureau

MRE RE—BES

Mr LEE Yiu-wah, Edward - Civil Engineering and Development Department
ZTRE KE - T RIRHEESR

Ms LI Wing-yi, Sheron - Architectural Services Department

TR Lt —EEE

Mr MOK Wah-hoi - Independent Commission Against Corruption

EEE AL -REAE

Terms of Reference : ERREERE -

1. To examine current practices on procurement in relation 1. BRERBAEENEXSAEBRIREES
to project planning, tendering, contract administration 2 BE - GHEBNIHEE  YRER
and site supervision and recommend good practices to HEELR  URSERBESHANER
improve the quality and cost effectiveness in delivery of MR ©
construction contracts.
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The Task Force on Partnering established under the
Committee on Procurement had completed the drafting of
the Guidelines on Partnering and it would likely be published
in 2010. It is intended that the document would serve as an
agreed industry good practice and to enhance collaborative
and team working environment in the Hong Kong construction
industry.

The Committee had established a Task Force on Contract Price
Fluctuation System for Private Sector Construction Contracts
to deliberate the possible mechanism for promoting fair and
equitable risk-sharing for industry stakeholders by adopting
Contract Price Fluctuation System in construction contracts
as well as the application of interim payment schedule with
milestones.

In addition, a new Task Force had been set up to deliberate
on the principles and methodologies in the selection of
consultants and contractors.

Committee on Environment and Technology
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Chairman =& = TR s

CIC Members =28

Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
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Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong
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Prof KO Jan-ming

Members K&

S8R HR

Mr LAM Wo-hei
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Ir LEE Kai-kwong, Peter
RO TA26m

Mr YU Wai-wai

REE K&

Director of Buildings
BFEER
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Co-opted Members #@#ZS

Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai

RER KL

Mr HO Pun-hing- Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors

AWE £E -FERETRHHS

Mr Russell JONES - Hong Kong Construction Association
ELH £ -FBZERS

Mr NG Shiu-ming - Association of Plastering Sub-contractors
RO EE -RAEHS

Mr PANG Long - Construction Site Workers General Union
T AL BB TS

Ms YEUNG Kwong-yim, Connie - Housing Department
Bid zt-FEEE

Government’s Representatives BifFX 3%

Mr CHUI Wing-wah - Development Bureau

BKE RE-BES

Mr FOK Wai-kai, Anthony - Environmental Protection Department
ERE XE-RERES

Mr LI Kwok-keung - Electrical and Mechanical Services Department
ZEHE AE-RETRE

Mr WONG Hon-kwok - Architectural Services Department

TEE A -EEE

Terms of Reference : HifEElE

1. To make recommendations on improving the 1. RHESR  UXESEFREZEBNRRN
environmental friendliness of buildings and & BREEBERARERNE  HEERIRERE
infrastructures including measures for enhancing BE  URBERERREHNES -

energy efficiency, improving indoor environmental
quality and minimising loading on the environment.

2. To recommend good practices for improving the 2. PABRESHRERRORIFEEFNR
environmental performance of construction contracts HiEE  EERERREEERBDENES
including measures for abating environmental e o
nuisances and reducing waste generation.

3. To co-ordinate and promote construction research and 3. WMARKEREEMRERERE  WieERE
development and facilitate practical application of (R ERAEBAMENGER -
research results by the construction industry.

4. To advise on the strategy for development of construction 4. PIATEEEENKRREMER -
standards.

5. To develop systems for assessing the performance of 5. FIEREERBNIEFE -
the construction industry.
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Committee Report :

The Committee on Environment and Technology had played an
active role in the incorporation of the Hong Kong Green Building
Council (HKGBC) which was established in November 2009
with the CIC being one of the four founding members of the
HKGBC. The CIC also provided support to the HKGBC after its
formation in terms of funding and administration.

The review on construction standards was completed with
the conclusion that, amongst others, the unification of
specifications for the local construction industry was not
necessary and the CIC could play a role in keeping track of
changes in the local construction standards on a regular
basis. A summary report would be published for information
of relevant stakeholders.

To encourage practical research on construction related
matters, a Task Force was set up to identify a suitable strat-
egy going forward. Different alternatives were contemplated
and the deliberation would continue in the coming year.

Wall tiles are commonly used as finishes to external walls of
buildings in Hong Kong. In view of the incidents of detachment
of wet-fixed external wall tiles, the Committee noted the concerns
of industry stakeholders and considered that the design and
workmanship standards for wet-fixing of external wall tiles and
rendering in buildings, in particular those high-rise ones,
under the local weather condition should be reviewed. A new
Task Force was set up to look into the matter and to consider
the need of commissioning a study to identify the enhancements
to the current design and workmanship standards. The Task
Force targeted to commission the study in 2010.

Committee on Subcontracting
TRSHARES

Mr LEE Shing-see
TR %
CIC Members =&/ &

Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa

Chairman =&

Members &

EEEE 1+

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong
RER &

Mr HUI Hon-chung, Stanley
PR

ZEEWE
RERBNEZESERSEETBEZEEEREN
R TAHE > WHR2009F 11 BRLEBHBES
R MEEEZSRANBAIKREEEREZ
— cBRETEEBRCEEFENILE @ BEK
BEREENTE -

BERENRN TFE KT RAELRE B
BREEARATMBEXRS K BETHER
i RERENND - ZESHRBRBERSE
UHEREEHESE -

REBEZEXEBENEEAREMRLNERT N
B EEFRUTHSERE - FRNAFRE T
R WEERFEBEETR o

SMEREE —RAREBEZEMIMEEE o ER
BRERABUIMEREBAENSM - ZESH
BERFDEHSHNET - LR BERNH
MEZEYHIMNEEBRE  LHERSEAE -
REABRRIERGN KGR IREERE 3
RNEEPEFMETHE  TRBBEFRET
BRETHE - RHERITRI R IREEREN
HERE - EE/DAERNR2010F ZtBBETH

BEXFE_TTNFEER
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Ir James CHIU

S T2

Mr CHOI Chun-wa

BHAE K4

Ir KWAN Chi-ping, Edgar
A T2R

Mr TSE Chun-yuen

R T4

Mr WAN Koon-sun

BEE A

Mr WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
BERE KL

Mr YU Wai-wai

RERE K&

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
ERREEREAINER (BE)

Co-opted Members #£@#Z 8

Mr CHEUNG Tak-hing, Victor

RIEE 4

Mr CHONG Kin-lit, Paul - The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors

HEZ A —BEREIRHHE

Mr HUI Man-bock, Bernard - The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
AN kL —BEREMEE

Mr HUI Siu-wai - Buildings Department

DR Tk —BFE

Mr LAI Chi-hung - Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’ General Union
REE RE —BBRERRTS

Mr LAW Wai-tai - Hong Kong Construction Association

BHER Tk —BBEEDHS

Mr NG Kwok-sing, Joseph - Hong Kong General Building Contractors
Association

REE & — BEEREXAEDHS

Mr NG Sun-wah, Lawrence - Hong Kong Marble and Granite Merchants
Association

L¥fE £t — BBEADHE

Mr SO Chee-sing - Henderson Land Development Co. Ltd.

BEA it — EEKEMEFRAT

Mr WONG Sing-lam - Contractor’s Authorised Signatory Association
HEM L — RERREZXBEADBE

Mr YAU Hung-yuen - Association of Electrical Contractors

EWR % — BXAPBHS

Ms YUNG Tak-ling, Sonia - Housing Department

SER LT —FEEE
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Government’s Representatives BXfFX &

Mr FOK Kwong-man, Kenny — Independent Commission Against

Corruption
EEX 4% — RBAE

Mr FUNG Chi-keung — Water Supplies Department

BEE £k — KEE

Mr HUI Chi-ho, Michael — Development Bureau

HER XL —BER

Mr TSO Sing-hin — Labour Department

ERELSE—B1E

Terms of Reference :

1. To operate and develop the Voluntary Subcontractor
Registration Scheme (VSRS).

2. To raise the professional standard of subcontractors
through providing training courses and other value-added
services under the VSRS and coordinating the training
organised by other organisations.

3. To examine current arrangements for selection and
management of subcontractors and recommend
improvements.

4. To promote use of written subcontracts.

Committee Report :

The Committee on Subcontracting commissioned a research
institute to conduct a comprehensive survey with a view to
collecting quantifiable information from different entities of
the construction industry to understand the nature and the
seriousness of the outstanding payment problems. Different
sets of questionnaires were tailor-made for different sectors
of respondents including employers, consultants, main
contractors, subcontractors and suppliers. Initial survey
findings and observations from the analysis of the survey
data were reported to the Committee in January 2010. Upon
the finalisation of the survey report, the findings will be studied
in detail to derive possible solutions and the way forward to
address the outstanding payment problems persisted in the
industry.

The Committee started working on the stage two
development of Voluntary Subcontractor Registration
Scheme (VSRS). The framework of possible enhancements to

BESE
| BEARRIRHES DEEMAE (R
#E) -

2. EEMGIEZ T REEIRER L ABER
% UHRBHARBENNIEIEE - &M
RADBENEREKF -

3. ERRTIMENEEIEENZH MR
HERE -

4. EERERBEMEEIBELN -

ZEEHE
RTHBEBEXERENABBENMEERBER
E X IRDHAZESZTTMRAEBETZEN
BEHRE  RERATAFNERETRLNE
# e BAAERBAEBRBNZHERFTTEB
% BREEAA BB #F5EE  288kE#
[ERE - P AEERRBAEBIE D TAEHEER
HR - BHE2010F1AAEESRE - FHER
SERK ZEEHENSFANRATER -
REMHIET AT BRR TR R AR IRER 0] » BRIRZFESR
A IR AV B RGN R R RE o

JESRBIME D BREEMEIERNE R TECER
o MATHRERRERTEHAEEERR
BREMNBFENAGE  URSEMIBEANE
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improve the quality of registered subcontractors and widen the
recognition of the Scheme within the construction industry
was proposed by the Task Force set up to take charge of the
second stage development and was under consideration of
the Committee. The second stage development of the Scheme
was scheduled for launch in 2010.

With the satisfactory results of implementing measures to
protect workers from the non-payment of wages in the public
works projects, the Committee considered the need of
introducing those measures to the private sector to encourage
the adoption of the measures. Hence, the Committee drafted the
“Guidelines on Measures for Protection of Workers” Wages”
aiming to promote the good practices for preventing non-payment
of wages to construction workers in private sector construction
projects. The guidelines would be published in 2010.

It was considered important to resolve disputes arising from
construction works in a timely manner. Hence, the Committee
drafted the “Guidelines on Dispute Resolution” to introduce
new arrangements in dispute resolutions of construction
contract to encourage the adoption of different types of
alternative dispute resolution methods to arrive at early
settlement of disputes especially in private sector projects.
The guidelines would be published in 2010.

Objections Committee
EERHEELZES

Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa

nvenor B& i
el Eal Ehs WS 2+

Members % &

CIC Members &z 2

Prof KO Jan-ming
S8R #x
Mr LEE Shing-see
TR K%

Terms of Reference :

1. To determine objections to levy and surcharge made
under section 55 of CIC Ordinance.

Committee Report :

In 2009, the Objections Committee fine-tuned the
procedures adopted for dealing with objections to levy and

o RIEZEEHFENIZMN - RESNE
MR ARMER - EMHIE S R RETR20105#
$ o

ABREIANERTIEMEARTRER PHHET
MREEERS T RENRE  AEZEEERA
BEEEENERBETEBRIER  UHBEBA
TR - FY > ZESRET (REIAERT
BiEHEiEsl) - SEMBRIFEZESN - UL
AERPBEEENEEET ATERIE - it
JESIHFA2010F 33K -

EREMAREIRFES —HEEZIF - Bt
ZEERET (FEMARIED) H HEEIREN
FEBAFNIREFZH  SRERNTRERWN
BAFZEFN  [EHRFZ BIRLERR
1HE o ILIESIER2010F %K -

BEsE

1. Bz (BEEZRSRM) F55FREHER
R INE AR EE R

ZEGHRE:
20095 7 RERHBEEERMRELES
91D 88 55 HRItE 40 RS A8 (AR
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surcharge made under section 55 of the CIC Ordinance. By W FE R - B MR GREEE 2%
virtue of section 56 of the CIC Ordinance, the Objections BlYyE 56 RIERYETEESATEENE
Committee has the power to confirm, cancel or reduce the #1  BUHSURIE BN M InE - A2
levy or surcharge. During the year 2009, there were a total TE2009F AHRE T ARREHRMER - BEX

of six objection cases lodged by the contractors on the HETZESZEHNYWIEBERZ  ATHRE S
levies assessed by CIC. Having considered their grounds of HRER o B » —RIE20084F R RH R EH
objection, levies for the six objection cases were confirmed HEXR REEREEREETHYTEEREE
by the Objections Committee. In respect of one pending 223

objection case in 2008, the objector failed to provide the
information required and documentary evidence to support
its ground of objection.

Decision made by the Objections Committee on generic REREEZEFRNREBRBRER - U
cases was posted on the CIC website on a no name basis for FRELANZSMILREY - HERSZ -
information of the industry.

Construction Industry Training Board
REXIREES

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy

Chairman =& 2GE T2

Members & Mr CHEUNG Tak-hing, Victor
RIEE 4
Mr CHOI Wun-hing, Donald
BHRE Tt
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
BEfE &
Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
{25 TR2AM
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen
BEY T2
Mr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
FENEIE T4
Dr LEUNG Hip-hung (up to August 2009)

P B+ (200958 A 1E)

Dr LO Kin-ki (since August 2009)
EH 1t (200948 A 48)

Mr LOK Kwei-sang. Tandy

Ir POON Lok-to, Otto

LAY TIEEM

Mr TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy

WER KL

Mr TAO Kei-hung (up to February 2009)
IS4 (200952 A 1k)

Mr LAM Tin-sing, Enoch (since Feburary 2009)
MR E &4 (200952 A i)

Mr TSO Sing-hin

ERAE Ak

prersa_sshEpaes 29
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Terms of Reference:

1. To provide training courses for the construction industry;

2. To establish and maintain industrial training centres for
the construction industry;

3. Toassist, including by the provision of financial assistance,
in the placement of persons who have completed
training courses provided for the construction industry:

4. To assess the standards of skills achieved by any
person in any kind of work involving or in connection
with the construction industry, to conduct examinations
and tests, to issue or award certificates of attendance
or competence, and to establish the standards to be
achieved in respect of any such work;

5.  Where it is appointed under the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance (Cap 583) as the Registrar of
Construction Workers under that Ordinance, to perform
the functions conferred or imposed on the Registrar by
or under that Ordinance or any other enactment.

Committee Report:

In accordance with Section 6 of the Construction Industry
Council Ordinance, the Construction Industry Training Board
(CITB) continued to provide training courses for the
industry, trade tests to assess the standards of skills of tradesmen
and workers registration service through the Construction
Industry Council Training Academy (CICTA). In order to address
the manpower demand and skills mismatch situation arising
from the roll out of the infrastructure and minor works projects,
CITB has taken a number of initiatives during the year.

Firstly, to facilitate more people to join the construction
Industry, CITB initiated a project of “bringing our training into
the needed community”. Through this project CITB would
select a number of trades of high demand from the industry
and establish a small training centre to provide such training.
Location of the centre would be carefully chosen in a community
where there is a high rate of unemployment and where cost
of travelling to urban areas is high. After much consideration
and with the help of the Development Bureau a new training
centre was established in Tin Shui Wai in a record time of 90
days. The centre was initially set to train 300 workers a year
and will gradually increase to 700 a year.

Secondly, a new Apprenticeship Subsidy Scheme was also

s E
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put on trial in 2009 to enhance the placement and staying-on
rate of the graduates of full-time Basic Craft and Supervisor
courses in the industry.

Thirdly, as regards the provision of full-time training courses,
the Board advised that the current arrangement of offering
courses on a pre-determined and regular basis should be
changed to more flexible options based on the manpower
demand of the industry. At the end of the 2008/09 training
year, a total of 1,067 trainees completed either one of the
full-time Basic Craft Courses, Construction Supervisor/
Technician Programme or Adult Short Courses.

Fourthly, closer partnership with contractors was established
to provide training of craftsmen for trades that CICTA could
not provide or where CICTA could not provide the number of
craftsmen required. Under this collaborative training scheme,
CICTA will provide a contractor with training subsidy if the
contractor would hire an employee and train him in accordance
with a training programme by a trainer accredited by CICTA.

In response to manpower demand arising from the existing
and forthcoming public and private construction projects,
over 10 new short courses and part-time courses were
introduced in addition to the regular courses. To name a few,
there were the Shotfirer Training Course, Tower Crane Routine
Inspection and Maintenance Training Course, Training Course
for Ground Investigation Assistant Operator and Top-up Course
for Registered Minor Works Contractors. Besides, the CICTA also
tailor-made training courses for the contractors and relevant
organisations. In 2008/2009 training year, over 2,100 persons
attended such commissioned courses.

During the year, the implementation of trade tests and
certification tests went in parallel with the efforts in
providing training courses. New trade tests were set up
along with the review and update of the trade testing
contents of a few trades having regard to the development
of the industry. By year end, a total of 11,662 trade tests
for tradesmen, crane or load-shifting machinery operators
were conducted whilst about 61,000 persons (man times)
completed the part-time day or evening courses, or safety
related training courses offered by CICTA. At the request of
the Construction Workers Registration Authority, the CITB
decided to offer sub-divided trade tests for certain designated
trades as specified on Schedule 1 of the Construction Workers
Registration Ordinance. The taking back of construction-related
Electrical & Mechanical (E&M) trade tests from the Vocational
Training Council in five phases commenced smoothly in late
2009 and shall complete in 2010.
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Committee on Manpower Training and Development
ADBIRBEREES

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
BT IZAM

Members & CIC Members =2

Ir BONG Shu-ying, Francis
[BEdi & TA2AM

Mr CHOI Chun-wa
BEESLE

Ir LEE Kai-kwong, Peter
TR 2R

Mr TSE Chun-yuen

HHRR T

Mr WAN Koon-sun

BT RE

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
BREAEEMER (TK)

Co-opted Members i#&#HZ S

Mr CHOI Wun-hing, Donald - The Hong Kong Institute of Architects
BRRESE — BBEEMES
Ir CHONG Kin-lit, Paul - The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors
HEB2TRM — BBREIRHHS
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu - Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’
General Union

BEtE —BBEEXETE
Mr FAN Yiu-cheung - Union of Hong Kong Electrical Engineering Assistants
BRELE —BBEXIRYPBASIS
Ir LEE Wing-kee, Stephen - Hong Kong Construction Association
FRETRM-BBEERS
Mr TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy - Hong Kong Construction Association
AEREE — BBEEDHS
Mr TSIEH Chi-kong, Joseph - Hong Kong Marble & Granite Merchants Association
HEMEE — BEEAHE
Government’s Representatives BUfF{L &
Ir CHAN Shiu-on, James - Highways Department
BRIEZ Ti2hm — BRBLE
Mr LAM Siu-tong - Buildings Department
MOREE — BFE

Chairman =&

Terms of Reference : s E

1. To advise on matters arising from the amalgamation RESHBZEXIRFEHNWEBESE
between CIC and CITA. RHESR -

To advise on manpower planning and development for . PMBREEANRERBEE BEEXEA
construction personnel at professional, supervisory and T EBRRI=fEREE RHER-
craftsman levels.

To foster an ethical culture. . EBREEEENALTHNEEIRST -
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Committee Report :

The Committee on Manpower Training and Development in
the year continued to review the manpower situation of the
construction industry in order to assist the Construction
Industry Council (CIC) in formulating strategies for developing
quality manpower resources to meet the demand of
construction projects.

Complementing the consultancy study commissioned
by the Development Bureau on Development Strategy
for Professional Resources of Hong Kong's Construction and
related Engineering Services Sector, the Committee
commissioned the CityU Professional Services Ltd
(CPS) to conduct a manpower research in 2008 to develop a
sustainable model to forecast the demand and supply of
construction workers, technicians and supervisors. The
research was successfully completed in 2009, subject to
completion of three variation tasks by CPS to supplement the
research findings. The sustainable model developed and the
research findings would be further studied by the Committee
and subsequently manpower training and development strategies
would be proposed for CIC’s consideration.

The Code of Conduct for personnel in the construction
industry as recommended in the Report of the Construction
Industry Review Committee was drawn up after extensive
consultation with stakeholders in the industry. A
communication plan to promote the prescribed standards of
behaviour would be rolled outin 2010. In addition,assessment
of the tenders for the consultancy study on the definitions
and scope of duties of site supervision personnel was being
carried out at the end of 2009. Findings of the study would
be used to determine the need for introducing a mandatory
registration scheme for the supervisors.
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February
—_A

Meeting with stakeholders of industry to enhance bi-directional Signed the "Mediate-

communications to introduce the functions and concerns of the First” Pledge to promote

CIC, its committees and the Secretariat, as well as future plans the application of

of the CIC. mediation to resolve
disputes.

BERFGSE

2@ ETEM TRBA%. &

HE@EE %ﬁlﬁh%muﬁmﬂﬂfi,ﬁ

nREE -8 BERFE o

TREEEX

wEE SR

HEFIEESEIR -

URBEHRR =

TEtEl - As the supporting organisation of "Green Homes: Building An

Environmentally Sustainable Future for Hong Kong" Seminar.

UXFHIBEMSH "RREE  fEARARERUSERRZE.
g o

As the supporting organisation of the International Construction Conference
and Construction Services Exhibition : "New Solutions to Old Construction

Problems”.
UXHHESHSHERREERNEERFRES . "SHREMENHS
%J °

25 ~ 26 /5/2009

Interview with Mrs Carrie LAM, the
Secretary for Development, who shared her
visions on the construction industry.

CIC Training Academy Ground Breaking

SEEEEEMNSBRLT » S Ceremony at Tin Shui Wai Training Centre.
AERAIRES © EERERNRBEFKENFPOBLER o

17 / 6 / 2009

Lu Pan Patron's Day Dinner
Reception.

BUITAERRE -

22 /7 /2009 31/7/2009

Inaugural issue of the CIC newsletter. Through the newsletter,
we aim to provide more information to industry practitioners

As the co-organiser of the "Construction and the public about the functions of the CIC, its activities, as
Safety Forum and Award Presentation” to well as key events and projects within the construction
enhance safety awareness in the construction sector.

industry.

GEERBDEND BITISRER - BB (BEEEDEAD) -
DinpikiEss - 20 TREXREEIEE BMEERRFEREAMRRERHESHENESREENEEN
BiRRHE,  EEREINRE - &l - URBERRNEREHNER -

3/7/2009 8/8/2009
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September October November December
hB +A +—A +=A
|

Safety Seminar for Electrical Installation Works - to |
strengthen and reinstate safety awareness of electrical

installation works among the construction industry As a supporting organisation of the Second International
practitioners, and to review causes of past electrocuted Conference on Climate Change.

cases in relation to RMAA works: to update participants on

the latest statutory requirements in relation to electrical EREZBERRBRECIBNOIIGEE -

installation works; as well as to understand the roles and

responsibilities of property management personnel in 7~9/10/2009
electrical installation works.

BEIEREREE - BEEENERERNFEEHERXTE
RENTEE - FRETERE - B2 - MERETEFRAE

As the exclusive supporting organisation of the

BEEEFRE - MASEHNRETRNRIEEER  UATHE Alternative Dispute Resolution Forum 2009 organised
MEEBASEEHKETIRETENACNEES - by the Development Bureau.

e v e 20094 SRS BRI IS o
1275 2

21/9 /2009

12/10/2009

Interview with Mr Russell BLACK, Projects Director of MTR
Corporation Ltd (retired on 1 Feb 2010), who shared his
experience in managing the inherent complex railway
developments in Hong Kong and insight on the procurement
of railway infrastructure

Mr Keith KERR, Chairman of CIC (Feb 2007 ~ Jan 2010) was
invited to deliver a keynote speech at the opening ceremony of
the HKCA's 90th rs -

projects. Anniversary Public == -
SRS EEREREAT Display Exhibition.
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7/10/ 2009 16/10/2009

Hong Kong Green Quality Public
URAL CEREMONY Building Council - Housing
ONFERENCE Inaugural  Ceremony Construction &
cum Conference. Maintenance
CIC is one of the Awards 2009.
founding members.
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Independent Auditor’s Report | %

To the Members of Construction
Industry Council

(Established under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance,
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region)

We have audited the financial statements of Construction Industry
Council (the “Council” ) set out on pages 38 to 67, which com-
prise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2009, and the in-
come and expenditure account, the statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in fund and reserves, and cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant ac-
counting policies and other explanatory notes.

The Council’'s Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 26(2) of the Construction
Industry Council Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

(RIBEF BT REREXZSHRAIRL)

FREHBMEERTINEBETEREERET (U
TEE [FE] ) 2WBHEK - BEN20095F
12A31AZEERER  RBEZALFENK
XEER THRSAEER  ESRHEZDE
BEXRAIRNERBEER  URTESTHHEME
K ELABHEARRE o

SERMBRRARE L

ZEREERRBBSTMOSEMN (FBYM
BWELEA) R (BEXZSRO) - GREE
HEAFHHBRE - AEEEEERS BT
HEFEFEHEBEAFNMBRREENANE
BHE - DREAMBHRR T FEARKEFERER
MEMMEXHERFL - RERERAEENSS
BOR ~ RABLER T EHEENSESR -

REETRIE(E

ARBMNEERER (BEXZRSMRM) 5
26(2fRIRE - RIBRMBLTFNER - HZ
ZPBHRELHER  ARUZRERN2BES
| BRI ZO  ABETAIERMAR - &
HE TR ARENART - HEAHEMBATE LS
AEEMEE -

AERHMRBEBSTMASHEMAH (BB
HER) ETERTE ARBEABTELE
BIFFR] EMVEIEER - WHERSISETER T
i EESEINEE  BESREREHFEE
RERIR - FHSEHFEE

ERBEYRMTREFUENE B BRRAE
ZHERBESHANERERR - FEENERFA
BT ZBEP Y E - B B ERFE SRR T
BYUBHRRFEERERRLN RS  £ET




Independent Auditor's Report | B & A RS

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of the Council's affairs as at 31 December 2009 and of its
surplus and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Construction Industry Council
Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road, Central

Hong Kong
18 June 2010
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Income and Expenditure Account forthe year ended 31 December 2009

W EE R nz000512831A L5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L& #5t)

Note fifzt 2009 2008
Income LON HKS$ &% HKS 78
Levy income EEUON 5 $266,582,074 $251,097.864
Course fee and related income R E R AR A 21,486,403 19,886,262
Trade testing income TERHEBA 5,257,610 4,308,714
Investment and interest income RERFEWA 6 5,613,149 12,605,231
Gain on disposal of property, HEH - BBRR
plant and equipment BBz FE S 31,812
Other income HAA 7 13,094,494 9,913,740
$312,033,730 $297.843,623
Less: DR
Expenditure X
Staff costs (including retirement BMEER (BfFEIK
benefit schemes (note 18) ) RIESTE] (Mf5E18)) $161,329,747 $151,709,705
Training expenses HmEA 33,892,185 29,954,903
Workshop sundries THMIEXRH 12,520,405 11,438,450
General and administrative expenses —RITEHEH 18,419,409 14,537,338
Repairs and maintenance expenses HIBEREER 4,745,824 5,886,894
Advertising and publicity expenses EEEEER 2,833,186 6,223,748
Depreciation e 9 4,621,606 3,222,943
Loss on disposal of property, HEYIZE - HEERk
plant and equipment R EE 38,912 -
(Reversal of) / Allowance for doubtful debts  RiE(EE) /& 12(c) (111,092) 193,979
$238,290,182 $223,167.960
Surplus for the year REEREH $73.743548  $74,675,663

Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2009
2HKNREE R gz20005128310 LFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L8 #5t) Note Bzt 2009 2008
HKS$ &% HKS 8%

Surplus for the year REERER $73,743548  $74,675,663
Other comprehensive income for the year AFEHMEEKE
Gain/(loss) arising from fair value of REATHEEREZ

available-for-sale investments NFEEZAE/ (B5E) 3(d) 14,594,712  _ (19.665.450)
Total comprehensive income for the year REEHAEENE $88,338,260  $55,010,213
The notes on pages 43 to 67 form part of SE43E67EM MM 55
these financial statements. Rz o
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Balance Sheet at 31 December 2009

EBEEBER noo0vE128318

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L& #5t)

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Held-to-maturity investments
Available-for-sale investments

Current assets

Held-to-maturity investments

Levy receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other
receivables

Cash and deposits at banks

Cash on hand

Current liabilities

Accounts payables and accruals

Amounts set aside for staff termination
gratuities

Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority

Net current assets

NET ASSETS

Represented by:

Accumulated Fund

General Reserve

Investment Revaluation Reserve

Financial Statements |
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The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Construction Industry Council on18June 2010and

were signed on its behalf by:

Mr LEE Shing-see, GBS, OBE, JP

Chairman, Construction Industry Council

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy, JP

Member, Committee on Administration and Finance

The notes on pages 43 to 67 form part of these financial

statements.

13
14

15

16

IR AR

2009 2008

HKS s&#x HK$ 58
$18,740,529  $13,835,717
40,329,886 40,000,000
44,455,652 26,133,804
$103.526,067  $79.969.521
$ - $40,372,772
15,132,478 14,451,897
8,025,185 5,772,187
424,227.891 324,723,254
86,300 76,000

$447,471,854

$385,396,110

$21,788208  $24,529.921

500,585 693,377
1,047,108 818,573
923335901 $26,041871
$424,135,953  $359.354,239
$527,662,020 $439.323.760
$146,306,000  $72,562.452
386,426,758 386,426,758
(5.070.738) _(19.665.450)
$527,662,020  $439,323,760
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Statement of Changes in Fund and Reserves for the year ended 31 December 2009

g%&ﬁ%'{%%@]%&:%% B ZE2009F12831HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L& #5t)

Accumulated General Investment
fund reserve  revaluation

reserve Total

ZEES EEHE REEGRHE IR

(Note 5£(@)) (Note & (b))

At 1 January 2008 200818 1H $2113211)  $ - $ - $113211)
Total comprehensive income  AREEFH2EKE
for the year 74,675,663 - (19.665,450) 55,010,213

Statutory transfer of net assets REHEEEIHKF
from Construction Industry NEEFELITER

Training Authority - 386,426,758 - 386,426,758
At 31 December 2008 720085 12831H
and 1 January 2009 K%2009F1A1H $72,562,452 $386,426,758 $(19.665,450) $439,323,760
Total comprehensive income  AREEFHEENE
for the year 73,743,548 - 14,594,712 88,338,260
At 31 December 2009 #2009 12A31H $146,306,000 $386,426,758 $(5.070,738) $527,662,020
Notes : At
(@) The general reserve has been set up to record the (a) EBRRBERIELHERABEXIREN
statutory transfer of net assets from Construction EEFELITEB(MES) - RUEBRHHE
Industry Training Authority (note 8). The general reserve RAERZERENBENEEEFLR
was created for employing the reserve in the operations LRERARBEENEBEAIR » 2ERE
of the Council or by investing the reserve in such manner fEHRE - BE AR MEAMISRI A
as the Members think fit. The Members may apply the FEREREBEHE -

general reserve for any other special purpose.

(b) The investment revaluation reserve comprises the (b) REEMRFRBRENTHEEZREZZE
cumulative net change in the fair value of available- BRALEZBFANAFTEESZERREBESTHR
for-sale securities held at the balance sheet date and is R (FTEE3(d)) AR ©
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy in
note 3(d).

The notes on pages 43 to 67 form part of these financial FA3ETEMME B A BIREK 2 —81 -

statements.
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2009

Iﬁﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ% BZE2009F12831HILEE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L& #5t)

Note HfzE 2009 2008
Operating activities BEEE HK$ s HKS 8%
Surplus for the year REEREH $73,743548  $74,675,663
Adjustments for: A
- (Reversal of)/Allowance for doubtful debts - Rk E)/%E%E (111,092) 193,979
- Depreciation -IE 4,621,606 3,222,943
- Investment and interest income - RERFEWA (5.613,149)  (12,605,231)
- Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, - HEYIE - R
plant and equipment Rt 2 B E/(RIH) 38,912 (31.812)
Operating cash inflow before KRitEEELEH
movements in working capital ZEERERE $72,679.825  $65,455,542
(Increase)/decrease in levy receivables FE BB (3B )R 2> (569,489) 8,617,812
Increase in deposits, prepayments ®’E - ANERAR
and other receivables HL 1t FE YR TE 3B AN (2,252,998) (131,171)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts FETIRIE K FEST
payables and accruals B AR g (2,741,713) 2,793,491
Decrease in amounts set aside for BEA W<
staff termination gratuities EHHD (192,792) (309.491)
Increase in amount due to Construction BIEZET AT
Workers Registration Authority EERAXIEM 228,535 593,357
Net cash from operating activities REBETBZREBH $67,151,368  $77.019,540
Investing activities BAEH
Decrease /(increase) in bank deposits BB BB =1 A $20.130 $(60,241)
with maturity over three months EIHA 2 SRITIFRK
Proceeds from derecognition of BRI ERIHNA
held-to-maturity investments ZREFRSRIR 40,000,000 20,000,000
Interest received WEFI S 4,525,027 11,200,950
Dividend received from WEL A&
available-for-sale investments REZBRE 816,835 852,756
Proceeds from disposal of HEY - HaR
property, plant and equipment KR BTG FIE 8,205 139.850
Purchase of property, plant and equipment A% - #EERH1E (9.573,535) (6,902,037)
Payment for right issues of shares MR FOE (3.412,963) -

REREXEIRRNEEF
BEErEEBRER2RE 8 - 217,661,638
RERBEDZREBH $32,383,699 $242,892,916

BeRERRAKNEPRN $99.535,067 $319.912,456

Cash from statutory transfer of net assets
from Construction Industry Training Authority
Net cash generated from investing Activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

REEXBE_STAEEER 41
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Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2009 (continued)
IHWEREBLER nz0005128318 L5 (#)

=

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L8 #5t)

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and deposits at banks

Cash on hand

Less: Bank deposits with maturity over
three months

FMZHER
FRABRKNA

FRZEER
FRABR&HA

BeRERRE

REREZSH

RITBEERFRK
FERE

w8 3 fE A

Rz RITER

The notes on pages 43 to 67 form part of these financial

statements.
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Note FfizE

14

2009 2008
HK$ &% HKS$ 8
324,739,013 4,826,557
$424,274,080 $324,739,013
$424,227.891 $324,723,254
86,300 76,000
$424314,191  $324,799.254
(40,111) (60,241)
$424,274,080 $324,739,013

SBASECTEMMEB A BHEK 2 —2B1% -




Notes to the Financial Statements

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars L8835t

1. General

The Construction Industry Council (the “Council”) was
established as a statutory body on 1 February 2007 in Hong
Kong under the Construction Industry Council Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”). The Council is a non-profit making organisation
and acts as an industry co-ordinating body. Its principal
functions are to forge consensus on long-term strategic
issues, convey the industry’'s needs and aspirations to the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government (the
“Government”), as well as provide a communication channel
for the Government to solicit advice on all construction-related
matters. In order to propagate improvements across the
entire industry, the Council is empowered to formulate codes
of conduct, administer registration and rating schemes, steer
forward research and manpower development, provide and
co-ordinate training courses, facilitate adoption of construction
standards, promote good practices and compile performance
indicators and make recommendations with respect to the

rate of the levy.

The Ordinance was enacted by the Legislative Council on 23
May 2006 and partially came into operation on 1 February 2007.
Upon full enactment of the whole legislation from 1 January
2008, the Construction Industry Training Authority (“CITA”) was
dissolved and subsumed under the Council as a committee
named as the Construction Industry Training Board. Moreover,
from 1 January 2008, the construction levies were used to
support the daily operations of the Council as well as other

activities that will benefit the construction industry at large.

By virtue of section 72(1) of the Ordinance, all rights, assets,
liabilities and obligations of CITA were vested in the Council
from 1 January 2008. Employees of CITA under a valid
contract of employment became employees of the Council

from 1 January 2008.

The address of the registered office of the Council is located
at Rooms 2001-03, 20/F, Alliance Building, 130-136 Connaught
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Road Central, Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,

which is also the functional currency of the Council.

2. Application of new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”)

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") has issued one new HKFRS, a number of
amendments to HKFRSs and new Interpretations that
are first effective for the current accounting period of the
Council. Of these, the following developments are relevant
to the Council’s financial statements:

- HKAS 1 (revised 2007), Presentation of financial
statements

- Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosure - improving disclosures about financial
instruments

The impact of these developments is as follows:

- As a result of the adoption of HKAS 1 (revised 2007), all
items of income and expenditure are presented in the
income and expenditure account, if they are recognised
as part of income or expenditure for the period, or
otherwise in a new primary statement, the statement of
comprehensive income. Corresponding amounts have
been restated to conform to the new presentation. This
change in presentation has no effect on reported income
or expenditure, total income and expenditure or net
assets for any period presented.

- As a result of the adoption of the amendments to HKFRS
7, the financial statements include expanded disclosures
in note 20 about the fair value measurement of the
Council’s financial instruments, categorising these fair
value measurements into a three-level fair value
hierarchy according to the extent to which they are

based on observable market data.
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The Council has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 23).

3. Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which collective
term includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Ordinance. A
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by

the Council is set out below.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that
the financial instruments classified as available-for-sale
financial assets are stated at their fair values as explained

in the accounting policy set out in note 3(d)(iv).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the Council to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may

differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.
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Recognition of income
Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.

Levy income is accounted for on an accrual basis and
is recognised upon the assessment of the value of

construction works by the Council.

Course fee and related income and trade testing income

are recognised over the year of instruction or testing.

Registration service fee income is recognised when the

services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the Council’'s right to receive payment has been

established.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that

asset’s net carrying amount.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses (3(C)).

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives (note 9) and after taking into account of their

estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

(a)

(b)
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(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements |

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the income and expenditure account in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Council reviewed the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately

in the income and expenditure account.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prioryears. Areversal of an impairment loss
is recognised immediately in the income and expenditure

account.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the balance sheet when the Council became a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,

on initial recognition.

(c)

(d)
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Financial assets

The Council’s financial assets are classified into one of
the following categories, including loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date/settlement date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the marketplace.

(i) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised costs of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,

where appropriate, a shorter period.

(ii) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including levy receivables and other
receivables) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses (see note 3(d)(v)).

(iii) Held-to-maturity investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative

financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
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Notes to the Financial Statements

and fixed maturities that the Council's management
has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment

losses (see note 3(d)(v)).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated or not
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-

maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets
are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under investment revaluation
reserve in the statement of changes in fund and
reserves, until the financial asset is disposed of or
is determined to be impaired (see note 3(d)(v)), at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve
is removed from the reserve and recognised in the

income and expenditure account.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value
through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been impacted.

(iv)

(v)

| BFEEERARMYEE

MWEIHRRE MESEEEREER
REREIBZEHAL  AIEHAS
ZEHAZRE - ARVBEIENE
BEEEEREHERD  HERHPAZ
RERKABRAMELG LIRS BN
RBEMEHB ZHERBEIIR (2
RIBTEE3(d)(v)) o

TSNS REE
EBETETAZSRMER - RN
BINE AL RIEB A NE - HRR
WSS S A 2 REUAT
ESERSMARE - AIGTIBTHE
ENSRERE -

ERIEIARNEBEEERBEREE
B AJHEENESRHEERUDFE
BEFE - AFEENRERAEMEE
W YRESRHEEEBE
BERZIREEMRERNRT - EE26H
TREERHE  IWECRE (2
BIFEE3(d)(v) @ EREEAEREER
EEFEAERNRT RSB REE
W EERATER

SRR ERE
BREBENNBEITEATENESE
EEN  HtteREENESEEESR
BEREEBRFEERRERER - &
BRERBRRREREENRIRE
RERBE BB EMET T RKE
MNRETRE  ZERMEESPRE -

BEXZE_TTNE

it
mn
B

49



50 CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2009

Notes to the Financial Statements

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence

of impairment could include:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

- default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
For certain categories of financial asset, such
as levy receivables and other receivables,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Council’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
an impairment loss is recognised in the
income and expenditure account when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at

the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is

reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
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Notes to the Financial Statements

financial assets with the exception of levy
receivables and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised
in the income and expenditure account. When a
levy receivable and other receivables are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to

the income and expenditure account.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount
of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through the income and expenditure account to the
extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the
date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments will not be reversed in the income
and expenditure account in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment
loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under investment
revaluation reserve in the statement of changes
in fund and reserves. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the
investment can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the recognition of the impairment

loss.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities issued by the Council are ini-
tially recognised at fair value and classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements en-
tered into and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

The Council’s financial liabilities are generally classified

into other financial liabilities.

() Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,

or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

(i)  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities (including accounts payable and
amount due to Construction Workers Registration
Authority) are subsequently measured at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Council had transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable
and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised directly in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under reserve is recognised in

the income and expenditure account.
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Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the

income and expenditure account.

Non-monetary government grants

Government grant takes the form of a transfer of a
non-monetary asset, such as land or other resources,
for the use of the Council together with the subject asset

are recorded at nominal amount.

Employee benefits

Salaries, gratuities, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement schemes and the
cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by

employees.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at

acquisition.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Council has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

can be made. Where the time value of money is
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material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(i) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Council if:

() the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Council or exercise significant influence over
the Council in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the

Council, or vice versa;

(i) the Council and the party are subject to common

control;

(iii) the party is an associate of the Council or a joint

venture in which the Council is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Council or the Council’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual, or
is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party referred

toin (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2009
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or significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi) the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Council or of

any entity that is a related party of the Council.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.

4. Financial instruments

(a)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives

The Council has overall responsibility for the establishment
and review of the Council’s risk management framework.
The Council’s risk management policies are established
to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Council, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks
and adherence to market conditions and the Council’s
activities. The Council, through its training and
management standards and procedures, aimed
to develop a disciplined and constructive control
environment in which all employees understand their

roles and obligations.

There has been no change to the Council’'s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it is managed and

measured.

Credit risk management

The Council reviewed the recoverable amount of
the outstanding balances at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Council
considered that the Council’s credit risk is significantly
reduced. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Council's exposure to credit risk arising from levy

receivables are set out in note 12.
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The credit risk on the Council’s cash and bank deposits
is limited because the counterparties are major financial

institutions.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the Council, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Council’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Council managed liquidity risk by

continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

Interest rate risk

The Council was exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on interests bearing
financial assets. Interests bearing financial assets are
mainly cash and deposits at banks which are all short
term in nature. Therefore, any future variations in interest
rates will not have a significant impact on the results of

the Council.

Foreign exchange risk

The Council’s functional and presentation currency has
been in Hong Kong dollars since the operations are
mainly in Hong Kong. Accordingly, the Council

considered the foreign exchange risk is not significant.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities are

determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined

with reference to quoted market bid prices; and

(c)

(d)

(e)
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Notes to the Financial Statements | Bf#&sRERMIzE

- the fair value of other financial assets and liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using price from observable current market

transactions.

The Council considered that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the financial statements approximate their

corresponding fair values.

5. Levy income

Private sector METRE

Public sector NETRE

Others (note) Htr TR (&)
Penalty on overdue levy BHS B Z SR

Note: Others include levy income on construction
operations relating to the port and airport
development, Mass Transit Railway, East Rail and
West Rail.

In accordance with the provisions of section 32 of the
Ordinance, a levy was imposed at the rate of 0.4%, which was
applied to construction operations, the tender for which was
submitted on or after 10 January 2000 on the value of
all construction operations exceeding HK$1,000,000
undertaken in Hong Kong. Construction project of which the
tender was submitted before 10 January 2000 was subject to the

old levy rate of 0.25%.
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$162,931,465 $150,667,859
95,149,881 85,163,309
8.309.299 14,996,963
191.429 269,733
$266,582,074 $251,097.864
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6. Investment and interest income

| BFEEERARMEE

6. REKFS WA

2009
Interest on debt securities BEEZFE $2,339,623
Interest on bank deposits RITIFRZFIE 2,142,446
Other interest income HbR S YA 72
Dividend from available-for-sale investments  A[tHEREZRE 1,131,008
_$5.613.149

7. Other income 7. EfUR A
2009

Service fee income from Construction REBEETA
Workers Registration Authority (note 22) TMEER MRS $11.670.667
BERRKA (MEE22)

Other miscellaneous income HbzEERA 1,423,827
$13,094,494

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2009

2008

$3.759.797
6,635,391
16,149

2,193,894

$12,605,231

2008

$9.417.195

496,545
$9.913,740
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8. Statutorytransfer of net assets from
CITA

By virtue of section 72(1) of the Ordinance, all rights, assets,
liabilities and obligations of CITA were vested in the Council
from 1 January 2008. The Council took up all the functions

and responsibilities of CITA.

Net assets transferred to the Council at 1 January 2008 are

as follows:

Property, plant and equipment
Held-to-maturity investments
Available-for-sale investments
Levy receivables

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables

Amount due from the Council

Accounts payables and accruals

Amounts set aside for staff termination gratuities

Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority

Subtotal

Cash and deposits at bank

Cash on hand

Net cash inflow

Total

8. REZIRMEEFREE
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$ 9.227,440
100,495,123
44,088,016
23,263,688

6,635,566
7.200,000
(20,916.,629)
(1,002,868)

(225,216)

$168,765,120

217,175,648

485,990

217,661,638
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9. Property, plant and equipment 9. W)= ~ HIENFE
Cost: B Facilities, tools,
Renovation machinery
and Funiture and workshop
Building building and equipment
and premises ~ Motor Computer  facilities fixtures %~ TH - Other
EEY) vehicles equipment BEk HERR HeE R  equipment Total
KT AR BERE EBEFEH BEERE THRE HtRE e
At 1 January 2008 200851 81H $-$ - $ 170410 $ 657,580 $146,790 $ - $ 62441 $ 1,037,221
Transfer from CITA BiEIIRER 5 264806 3,440,069 6581597 56,157 1,752,944 1,049,447 13,145,025
Additions B - - 1244939 1,144,627 185533 3786302 540,636 6,902,037
Disposals HE - - (38,262) (1,960)  (52,122) - (292400  (121,584)

At 31 December 2008 720085128310 $§5 $264.806 $4.817,156 $8,381,844 $336,358 $5539.246 $1,623,284 $20,962,699

At 1 January 2009 2009F1 818 $5 $264,806 $4,817,156 $8,381,844 $336,358 $5.539.246 $1,623,284 $20,962,699
Additions P - - 1622438 6097795 87161 1,490,577 275564 9,573,535
Disposals HE - - - - - (67,7200 (62,9000 (130,620

At 31 December 2009 720095128318 $5 $264,806 $6.439,594 $14,479,639 $423519 $6,962,103 $1,835,948 $30,405,614

Accumulated depreciation: Z&HE:

At 1 January 2008 A2008E1818  $-$ - $ -5 - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Transfer from CITA BEIIFER - 75027 1,359.266 1,770,526 9,729 578,637 124,400 3,917,585
Charge for the year REERRE - 52,960 932,976 1,523,378 21,977 554,628 137,024 3,222,943
Written back on disposals H&#% > B - - (6,820) - - - (6.726) (13,546)

At 31 December 2008 720085 12H318 §$- $127,987 $2,285422 $3.293,904  $31,706 $1.133.265 $254,698 $7.126,982

At 1 January 2009 720091810 $- $127,987 $2,285422 $3,293904  $31,706 $1,133.265  $254,698 $7,126,982
Charge for the year REERE - 52,960 963,695 2,169,373 37,395 1,221,822 176,361 4,621,606
Written back on disposals H%&% =[5 - - - - - (60,289)  (23,214) (83,503)
At 31 December 2009 M2009F12A8318 §- $180.947 $3249.117 $5463277  $69.101 $2,294,798  $407,845 $11,665,085
Net book value: MR TE FHE:

At 31 December 2009 2009 12A31H =$2 $83,859 $3,190,477 $9.016,362 $354,418 $4,667,305 $1,428,103 $18,740,529

At 31 December 2008 20085 12A31H =$2 $136,819 $2531,734 _$5.087.940 $304,652 $4,405,981 $1,368,586 $13,835.717
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The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per
annum:

Building and premises

Motor vehicles

Computer equipment

Renovation and building facilities

Furniture and fixtures

Facilities, tools, machinery and workshop equipment

Other equipment

10. Held-to-maturity investments

Unlisted debt instruments

Analysed as:

Non-current assets

Current assets

The held-to-maturity investments are neither past

due nor impaired.

11. Available-for-sale investments

Equity securities listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (at market value)

BRI MY AT

Lz - EBERRENITERUERETE  RERE
B EEA A F RS ERA - PR ANERNT:

rEY KRBT 4% - 10%
AE 20%
e B 20% - 33 '/3%
BHRETRE 20%
BRMRETERE 10%
&t~ TR #EkTHERE 20%
Hitbz s 10%

10. T2 EZRE

2009 2008
FETEBRE _$40329886  $80.372772
DA
FERBEE $40,329,886 $40,000,000
RBEE - 40,372,772
_$40.329.886  _$80.372,772
BRI A2RETEEEELBE -
1. AMREHERKRE
2009 2008
EEBBMAREF
BREAT LT Z
RS
(T ) $44.455,652 $26.133,804

BEXEE_TTNFEEHR
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12. Levy receivables

Levy receivables

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts

@

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY COUNCIL ANNUAL REPORT 2009

FE R
B RIREE

The average credit period on levy receivables granted to
the contractors is 28 days after the contractor receives

the notice of assessment.

No penalty is imposed on the contractor for the
specified period of 28 days. Thereafter, penalty is
imposed at 5% of the unpaid amount. If the amount of
the levy or surcharge, including any penalty imposed
remains unpaid within three months after the expiry of
the specified period, a further penalty of 5% of the unpaid
amount will be imposed on the outstanding balance.
The Council would provide fully for all long outstanding
receivables, having considered, inter alia, the likelihood

of recoverability based on historical experience.

Included in the Council’'s levy receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$1,065,919 (2008:
HK$1.419,117) which are past due at the reporting date
for which the Council had not provided for any
doubtful debts as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable. The Council did not hold any collateral over
these balances. The average age of these receivables is
482 days (2008: 266 days). The increase in average age
was due to the brought forward effect of aged debtor

balances from previous years.

PR R MY RE

12. EWEFR

(a)

2009 2008
$17.804,032 $18,262,779
(2.671,554) (3.810.882)
$15,132,478 $14,451,897

AEZBVPHAEUNRIFERTNAH 2
28RBS

RPN RAB AL TRIRK » BBEK
BEASNE RN RENS%E K o W0
HREMINE - BEAE TR - £HR
EAR28 X M Em AN =188 AR
X AEEAABEIMIN S MER - B
RPN HENS% - FECREBERIE
RBUER R R - BRIBIEXEWIRIEE
RS -

ERERKBRNESHRR > HPREE
$1,065,919 (20084 : $1,419,117) W&
BRBRERAPSEEBEEMNR  FEER
EUIREZEFAERW|EXEE - HAEE
BEETERLKE - RE RZERIRES
BE BEUERZSRBEESRES
ARG > MEERRFIENTFIIRERS
482K (2008%F : 266K) o FIFIRERIGHN
TERAREABEIRENEHARERE &
&0 o
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Aging of past due but not impaired

BRI MY AT

(b) JEERERAEHIRIE < FEWIRTE 2 IR

2009 2008
0 - 30 days 0-30% $160,027 $30,278
31 - 60 days 31-60K% 31,408 730,533
61 - 90 days 61-90K 38,762 -
Over 90 days 90K A £ 835,722 658,306
_$1.065.919 _$1.419.17
(¢) Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts (c) RIREHZEE
2009 2008
At the beginning of the year EERER $3.810,882 $ -
Transfer from CITA BEIRER - 4,600,164
Amounts written off during the year FENTHE 2R (1,028,236) (983,261)
(Reversal of ) [ Increase in allowance TERZEERAER
recognised in the income and KA > (R N
expenditure account 2 (B8 _(111.092) _193.979
At the end of the year FERNKLE _$2,671,554 _$3.810.882
In determining the recoverability of levy receivables, the EEEHEERHARESTKRER  SEEHAKT

RTFEEEREAHLEEREBERERNERER
BEED AREAERENEENERAREETH
B HEBEENERARBRAR Bt FEHEEE
RIREARLAINB A RS B INEE -

Council considered any change in the credit quality of the levy
receivables from the date credit was initially granted up to the
reporting date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due
to the contractor base being large and unrelated. Accordingly,
the Council believed that there is no further credit provision

required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts.

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually ERIREFEANLZEAS$1,193,286(2008%F
$2,332,614) W R B T ERE - B
BAD BRI RE VIR AER 2 B

Mo BEUERZEREERITEETMERR -

impaired levy receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$1,193,286 (2008: HK$2,332,614) which have either been
placed under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties.

The Council did not hold any collateral over these balances.

prerges_SSAEEEHR 03
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13. Deposits, prepayments and other 13. §IEZE - ANEARAE
receivables b FE U VR T8
2009 2008
Deposits and prepayments BERERENER $2,891,877 $2,512,389
Other receivables HibEWRIE
- Interest receivables - ERFE 948,722 1,964,934
- Dividend receivables - ERERE 259,674 407,085
- Others - Hith 3,924,912 887,779
$8,025,185 $5,772,187

The amount of the Council’'s deposits expected to be HHEREE-—FREANZISREESR

recovered after more than one year is HK$1,159,176 (2008: 1,159,176 70(2008%F : 1,033,1507T) ° B EAth
HK$1,033,150). All of the other deposits, prepayments and e ANER > URHMEBWIRE @ RSN
other receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised —FRNEFRYEEIAH/THIER -

as expenditure within one year.

14. Cash and deposits at banks 14. RITRERIFR

Cash and deposits at banks comprise cash and demanded FENRTRERGFABEREREHER -
deposits held by the Council. Cash and deposits at bank BERARTREREFRABBNTEFENRRIH
carry interest at market rates which range from 0.07% to 0.07%%0.42% (20085 %0.01% £ 4.7%) °
0.42% (2008: from 0.01% to 4.7%) per annum.

2009 2008

Deposits with banks RITIFR
- with maturity over three months BREHZN3EA $ 40111 $ 60,241
- with maturity less than three months ##&H N 3 @A 410,074,033 322,018,298
Cash at bank RITHES 14,113,747 2,644,715
$424,227,891 $324,723,254
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15. Accounts payables and accruals

All of the accounts payables and accruals are expected to be

settled within one year or are repayable on demand.

16. Amount due to Construction Workers
Registration Authority
The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

17. Auditor’s remuneration

Audit fee and disbursements included in general
and administrative expenses are as follows:
- current year provision

- (over)/under-provision in prior period

18. Retirement benefit schemes
Contributions to the retirement benefit schemes made by the

Council of HK$13,107,385 (2008: HK$13,190,041) are included

in staff costs.

19. Taxation

Pursuant to section 28 of the Ordinance, no provision for
taxation has been made in the financial statements as the
Council is exempted from taxation under the Inland Revenue

Ordinance.

BRI MY AT

15. E{SIRA R ESTE H

e R ETERERSER - FREEN
ARKREE -

16. ENBEXET AGTMEE
ISE/RE

Fg Ry BT - R 5 - WAKEE -

17. % EETEN €

BREE-RITHERRNOZE
BARH RENT:
- NEERE
- (GBE) ITREE

2009 2008
$185000  $185.000
(1,950 21,477

18. BRIK{REESTE

HEEABRNRESEIFTEL 213,107,3857T
3R (20085 413,190,041 T) D EIEEREE AR
pq °

19. ¥i18

RiE (BEXZSRD)) F28F HREEE
(BRI BRRANRE - BIRBEPRERSE
IR o
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20. Financial risk management and fair
values

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments:
Disclosures, require disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across three levels
of a “fair value hierarchy”. The fair value of each financial
instrument categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value measurement.

The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured using
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

financial instruments

- Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in
active markets for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which all significant
inputs are directly or indirectly based on observable

market data

- Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured using
valuation techniques in which any significant input is not

based on observable market data

The fair values of the Council's financial instruments
(other than available-for-sale investments) approximate
their carrying amount. The Council's available-for-sale
investments are categorised as level 1 financial
instruments. The fair value of the Council's available
for sale investments was HK$44,455,652 as at
31 December 2009 (2008: HK$26,133,804) which was
based on quoted market price in the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange (see note 11).

During the year there were no transfers among

instruments in level 1, level 2 or level 3.

| BFEEERARMEE

20. R RHEER A VERE

SRMTAZAVEE

(BB BHREENE7TR -SRI E  HE)
BER] - BREB (A FEESR] 2P =ER
B REEHEEMTAQNFEENEE - 8BS
MITAEMNAFEEGUERKE D  LUEEQ
FEBEMERARBEABEAR - BEHRBIR
EMT -

- F1IRESRD) U2 HEEER T ARNE
BhisH EmECREAR) MEE A FEE

- FE2RBEOERTIANERTESNLED
B FUEHEAHBHEEIBEER
AR T SBENGHERITMEE A FEE

- EREERR) UEAERBBIFEER
A RTISHBENGERTMEE A FEE

ZENERMIA(THEEZRERIMBD
FEEEASREEREL BEMNITHRLE
BRE BoAF1MEBMIA - HE2009F
128310 FEUHEERENDFEES
$44,455,652 (20084 £$26,133,804) BEEIE
ERBEBHERZMERATMITE (S
H11) 0

FERALEEIR  F

2N EIREMT AR
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21. Capital commitments

BRI MY AT

21. EAEIE

2009 2008
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition =~ BT QEIREH K
of property, plant and equipment contracted for ~ $2E AR - #esE
but not provided in the financial statements REFBzER N $555,000 $30.811
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition = BREBREIRE
of property, plant and equipment authorised SEESA/ERE -
but not contracted for in the financial statements RHREEAMELZH 800,000 4,272,000
$1,355,000 $4,302,811

22. Related party transactions

Apart from the outstanding balances with related parties as
disclosed in note 16, during the year, the Council entered into

the following transactions with a related party.

22. BEANERE

BREEMFE16IRENBEEA T 2B REHEI &
SEFRNEZREALETTIIRS °

2009 2008
Construction Workers Registration Authority BEET AZMERR
- Registration service fee income - SRS E A $10.857.107 $8.698.114
- Levy collection service fee income - BFRREE A 813,560 719,081

23. Possible impact of amendments,
new standards and interpretations
issued but not yet effective for the
year ended 31 December 2009

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA

has issued a number of amendments, new standards and

interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended

31 December 2009 and which have not been adopted in these

financial statements.

The Council is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them may result in new or amended disclosures,
it is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Council’s

results of operations and financial position.

23. O EMEFEE2009F
12B31BLEEFEERRE
MEVEET ~ FTIBXERI KR
WA RETE

BEEARPHRERBRED  HEETHAEE

HETIEET ~ FIEERAIRERE  BREERLARRK

REZE2009F12831HLEEEEN > FARBE

KRB ERFTERA ©

BRERENGBLEEIEETERNMENNY
g -HEBABL  SERIHKAEREER - T
TREFOIETHIKREER - BT EHES
HEBERR RSN - BREAZE -

pEersa_SSAEEER 01
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Membership of Committees (2010) ZEERKE (20105 )

Committee on Administration and Finance 1T R K EES

Chairman =/# ;:%L{EE%S;mg-see

Members % & CIC Members ZE/K &

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

FR4EHE Ti26m

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy

BB 26

Mr YU Wai-wai

RERE K%

Permanent Secretary for Development (Works)
BEREEEWER (TH)
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Committee on Construction Site Safety Tt Z 2 ZEE

Chairman =&

Members % &

Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
RER L

CIC Members =2k E

Mr CHEW Tai-chong
AKXE £E

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu

EEE K4

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
AT TI2EM

Prof KO Jan-ming

SEH iR

Mr KWAN Yuk-choi, James
BET k&

Mr LAM Oi-ki, Peter
MEE £4

Mr WAN Koon-sun

BEH T4

Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
EEE K%

Director of Buildings
EFEER

Co-opted Members #@#ZS

Mr James BLAKE - Kowloon-Canton Railway Coporation

BRg £t - WESKRERAR

Mr CHAN Dick-sang. Philip — Hong Kong Institute of Architects
PREE & -—BEBEEMES

Mr lan EDWARDS - Hong Kong Construction Association

NHEE £t -BBRERS

Ms FUNG Yin-suen, Ada — Housing Department

BHE 2+ -EEE

Mr KUOK Hoi-sang — Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors

EE KE-BERETREHHS

Mr KWONG Chiu-ling, Victor — Hong Kong Occupational Safety and Health
Association

BHEE f4 -BEREZ2HEHS

Mr LAI Chi-hung — Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’
General Union

RER RE-—BBREXBETS

Mr Dominic LAM - Hong Kong Federation of Insurers

MERE K4k - BBRBEHS

Mr LAU Chi-keung — Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong
28R e -BBMWERRDS

Mr LAU Chi-kin — Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

2ER EE-BBIRMES

Mr LEUNG Man-ho, Jonathan — Development Bureau

RUR KE-BES

Mr PANG Long - Construction Site Workers General Union

T RE-BEWBBTAS
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Mr PANG Yat-bond, Derrick — Chun Wo Development Holdings Ltd.

T RE-BRREDE

Mr TANG Wah-shing — Occupational Safety and Health Council

BER t4E -BEZZRER

Mr TSE Sik-hung, David — Hong Kong General Building Contractors Association
M Kk - BBEEXREDHS

Mr TSO Sing-hin — Labour Department

EREAE-¥TIE

A representative to be nominated by Hong Kong Construction

Sub-Contractors Association
EEREEIEEBEERANNKE

Y/

Committee on Procurement i ZE <

_ . Mr CHEW Tai-chong
Chairman =& BAXE k&

Members & CIC Members =K &

Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
PRELE L

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

PRARIE TF2AM

Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
A2 H TH2Em

Mr HO Wai-wah

fEE £t

Mr LAM 0i-ki, Peter

MEE 4

Mr LAM Wo-hei

MANE 4

Mr YU Kam-hung

R K4

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
BRNEEREEIUER (BE)

Co-opted Members #2@#Z 8

Mr KWAN King-fai, Alex — The Association of Consulting Engineers of
Hong Kong

BERE tE-BEERIEMGE

Mrs Irene CHENG - Housing Department

ERAE 2t -EEE

Mr Steve GRIFFIN — MTR Corporation Ltd.

LR T4 -FBERARAF

Mr MOK Wah-hoi — Independent Commission Against Corruption
EER L -RBLE

Mr LAU Ming-wai — Chinese Estates Holdings Ltd.

BIRIE EE—EABXEE

Mr Kevin POOLE - Airport Authority Hong Kong

BERER TE-BBNESEER

Mr TONG Sek-por, David — Development Bureau

B tE—%ES
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Committee on Environment and Technology IRER R ZESE

Chairman =&

Members &

Mr WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
PN e

CIC Members ;=&K&

Dr CHAN Ka-ching, Andrew
BRELE Bt

Ir CHAN Siu-hung

BRABLE TI2AM

Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
RER KA

Mr HO Wai-wah

fEEE T4

Prof KO Jan-ming

SER R

Mr KWAN Yuk- choi, James
BET k&

Mr LAM Wo-hei

MANEE 4

Prof LEE Hun-wei, Joseph
TR HE

Mr YU Kam-hung

RIBUE K&

Mr YU Wai-wai

RER KL

Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
ERRkEEREENER (BRE)
Director of Buildings
BFEER

Co-opted Members #£@#Z8

Mr CHEUNG Tat-tong — Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors

RER FE-BBHEMES

Mr CHOW Ping-wai - Hong Kong Construction Industry Employees’ General Union
WA STE - BERERRAAE

Mr CHUI Wing-wah — Development Bureau

BKE RE-BES

Mr FOK Wai-kai, Anthony — Environmental Protection Department
ERE AE-RIEREE

Mr HO Pun-hing — Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and Mechanical
Contractors

fAWE £t -BERETREHHS

Mr Russell JONES — Hong Kong Construction Association
Btk -—BRRERS

Ir LEE Kai-kwong, Peter — The University of Hong Kong

FROE TR -FBAE

Mr PANG Long - Construction Site Workers General Union

T RE-BEWBRH TS

Mr PANG Yat-bond, Derrick — Chun Wo Development Holdings Ltd.
T3 BE-ENBREE

Ms YEUNG Kwong-yim, Connie — Housing Department

BXH 2+ -FERE

BEXEE_TTNFEER
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Committee on Subcontracting TS HEZES

. . Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
Chairman =& —_—n

Members & CIC Members Z&KE
Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
BRERE 2+
Mr CHEUNG Hau-wai
RER TE
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
[BEE &
Mr HUI Hon-chung, Stanley
RS kA
Mr LAM Oi-ki, Peter
MREE SE4
Mr WAN Koon-sun
BEHT TE
Mr WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
BERE K&
Mr YU Kam-hung
REBME &
Mr YU Wai-wai
RER K&
Permanent Secretary for Transport and Housing (Housing)
ERREEREEIWNER (BE)

Co-opted Members E#HZES

Mr CHONG Kin-lit, Paul — The Hong Kong Federation of Electrical and
Mechanical Contractors

HE2 AL -BBREIRHHS

Mr FOK Kwong-man, Kenny — Independent Commission Against Corruption
EEX RE-RBLAE

Mr HUI Chi-ho, Michael — Development Bureau

HER RE-BRE

Mr HUI Man-bock, Bernard — The Hong Kong Institute of Architects

Xl EE-BRBEEMES

Mr NG Kwok-sing, Joseph — Hong Kong General Building Contractors
Association

RERS £E - BBEEXAEBHS

Mr NG Sun-wah, Lawrence — Hong Kong Marble and Granite Merchants
Association

I¥E £ -BEEABS

Mr TANG Ki-cheung — Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors (Quantity Surveyor)
B K4 -FBUEMEBE (TRUAEE)

MrTSE Chun-yuen—Hong Kong Construction Sub-Contractors Association
HRR k- BRREXS)CHHS

Mr WONG Sing-lam- Contractor’s Authorised Signatory Association
EEM TE - AEBREREEADHE

A representative to be nominated by Construction Site Workers

General Union

EEBETASIRANNAR

A representative to be nominated by Hong Kong Construction Association
BEERERERANAR
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Objections Committee RIENHEHEZEE

Convenor & A

Members &

Ms CHENG Yeuk-wah, Teresa
BB 7+

CIC Members :#2 /K&

Prof KO Jan-ming
SER R
Mr YU Kam-hung
RIBUE K&

Committee on Manpower Training and Development

ANBEIRBREES

Chairman =&

Members % &

Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
KR 26

CIC Members =28

Mr CHOW Luen-kiu

JEHE

Mr HO Wai-wah

g2 k4

Mr WAN Koon-sun

T Bk

Mr WONG Chik-wing, Mike
EEE K%

Mr WONG Tin-cheung, Conrad
BRE L

Co-opted Members EHZES

Mr LAM Tin-sing, Enoch - Development Bureau
MRE &tk - BES

BEXEE _TTNFEER
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Construction Industry Training Board & #£iHKEZES

Chairman =& Ir WONG Wing-hoo, Billy
BB TIZA

Members & Mr CHEUNG Tak-hing, Victor
RIBELSEE
Mr CHOI Wun-hing, Donald
BRELE
Mr CHOW Luen-kiu
B L
Ir HO On-sing, Thomas
Al 25 TA2RT
Ir KWAN Po-jen, Helen
BEY TRA

Mr LAl Yuk-fai, Stephen
FErERETE
Mr LAM Tin-sing, Enoch
MRERE

Dr LO Kin-ki

BREMLT

Mr LOK Kwei-sang, Tandy
Ir POON Lok-to, Otto

B LER TA2RT

Mr TSE Lai-leung, Jimmy
HER L

Mr TSO Sing-hin
ERELE
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Number of Higher Paid Staff REHNBE AR

The actual remuneration of staff members exceeding ERFEFRIAS1,000,000BEAZBNT -

$1,000,000 in 2008 and 2009 is shown below:

2009 2008

Number of Individuals Number of Individuals

BEA# BEAH

$1,000,000 to $1,800,000

REXFE _STSAEEER (9
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